
From: Judy Ervice
To: Murray, Susie
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Aviara info
Date: Tuesday, December 7, 2021 4:19:32 PM
Attachments: Comp apartments only.docx

Hi Susie,
Here is my list of other affordable apartment complexes (plus one market rate complex)in
Santa Rosa that are comparable in size to Aviara. I also included two that Jeff Johnson gave
me the names of…his company developed them in SoCal.  Because I used to live in San Diego
and have friends there, several of my friends did some scouting and spoke with residents of
these two complexes. 

Uniformly, all of these complexes have residents that report serious parking problems. I
wonder if this info can somehow be included with the presentation so I don’t have to use my
precious 3 minutes to review them? 

Also, is there any possibility this project can be earlier on the schedule on the 15th? Every
time, we have been last and have to sit through other lengthy presentations before Aviara
comes up. 

The neighborhood is feeling very discouraged and hopeless that protesting this will do any
good at all.  We all felt like the Design Review Board hearing was a “love-fest” between the
Board and the Developer and our concerns were not even acknowledged. We fear more of the
same and it’s doubtful we can raise the money for an appeal.  Folks think it would just be
throwing money down the drain.  Its sad that residents feel so powerless when we are
negatively impacted by all this. 

Also, wondering if the probable rat situation is being addressed? When the last small housing
development went in off Ridley, behind residents on Manhattan Way, they were inundated
with rats.  One person had to spend several thousand dollars for remediation.  One neighbor
heard about a program with some kind of dog (terrier) where they come in to areas under
construction to keep the rat population down. 

Thanks, Susie.
Judy Ervice

Judy 

Be the Light, Be the Change. 

mailto:judy.ervice@gmail.com
mailto:SMurray@srcity.org

Comparable Apartment Complexes

*Note*: Number of affordable housing complexes in Santa Rosa:

	    9 in South West

	    12 in North East

	    14 in South East

	    23 in North West: Why is Northwest SR getting more than our fair share? !



Legally: 2 people per bedroom plus one on couch.

1 bedroom can have 3 people

2 bedroom can have 5 people

3 bedroom can have 7 people

Developer said there would only be 5 In 3-bedroom unit but can’t legally limit.



Chelsea Gardens 526-6849

1220 McMinn Ave. & 919 Delport Ave

Studio, 1, 2 3-bedroom 118 units 165 parking places 

Parking is a problem. Neighbors complain about cars parked illegally. 

Three residents said “not enough parking.”



Cypress Ridge Apts.  526-6849

2239 Meda

122 units:  1 parking space per unit plus visitor, which residents sometimes use.

“Sometimes problem with parking”.  Has street parking. Neighbors complain.

Some 3 bedroom units sometimes have 2-3 cars. Resident says parking is a “terrible problem”.  All street parking was full at 7 pm on Thurs. eve. Property mgr says “would prefer more parking”.



NorthPoint Village I & II: 

2145 Stony Point Rd.

110 Units

182 resident parking places

10 Disabled spaces

40 visitor spaces

Parking is an issue. Residents fill up visitor spaces.

Residents are supposed to only have two cars per unit but if teens or young adults living with parents may have 4 cars per unit. Adult kids “come and go.

Because they are next to businesses, residents go elsewhere for overflow.



Olive Grove 575-7901

1905-1985 Zinfandel 

126 Units

Asked a resident who said he usually must park on the street. 5 min walk to street parking.



Panas Place Apt.

2450 Old Stony Pt. Rd.    574-5272 

66 units 129 parking spaces

“We don’t have enough parking.”

10 Units have 4 adults and some kids. Adult children move in with parents.

Street parking “a ways away”.

Per resident: “not nearly enough parking. Visitor spaces always taken by residents.” He moves his car offsite and gives his parking pass to his family or friends when they visit.



Santa Rosa Garden Apts.

4601 Montgomery Dr.

 539-1109 

111 units.  131 parking spaces. Street parking.

Resident says “Parking is a terrible problem”. 



Terracina:   

98 units

130 Parking places, assigned

Parking on nearest street (Eardley) almost full in the evening. 

Residents end up parking in visitor spaces. Have at least two cars per 2 and 3 bedroom units.



Sendero Townhomes (market rate)

707-703-1671

197 townhomes

2 parking places per residence

Street parking is always full or nearly full..

Lots of roommate situations, some units have 4-5 cars. 

Resident is looking for another place to live…can’t find parking. 

Quail Run

1018 Bellevue Ave

Santa Rosa

People who have more than one car per unit park in visitor parking. Street fills up weekends and evenings.



Affordable Housing Units developed by McGowan and Johnson:



Mesa Verde in San Diego

90 apts

24 1- bedroom

36 2-bedroom

27 3- bedroom

As per nearby resident who visited and interviewed several residents:

120 parking places

Parking is a problem.

People park in the visitor spaces and in areas lined off for deliveries etc. People park “all crazy”. If no parking, they go around the corner to street parking.



Juniper at the Preserve in Carlsbad, CA

64 apts.

1-bedroom apts assigned 1 parking place.

2 and 3-bedroom apts. assigned 2 parking places.

Some three-bedroom units have teens so 3 or 4 cars per unit. 

Adjoining street has about 20 parking spaces but still a “huge problem.”









































Comparable Apartment Complexes 
*Note*: Number of affordable housing complexes in Santa Rosa: 
     9 in South West 
     12 in North East 
     14 in South East 
     23 in North West: Why is Northwest SR getting more than our fair 
share? ! 
 
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
Some 3 bedroom units sometimes have 2-3 cars. Resident says parking is a 
“terrible problem”.  All street parking was full at 7 pm on Thurs. eve. Property mgr 
says “would prefer more parking”. 
 
NorthPoint Village I & II:  
2145 Stony Point Rd. 
110 Units 
182 resident parking places 
10 Disabled spaces 
40 visitor spaces 
Parking is an issue. Residents fill up visitor spaces. 
Residents are supposed to only have two cars per unit but if teens or young adults 
living with parents may have 4 cars per unit. Adult kids “come and go. 



Because they are next to businesses, residents go elsewhere for overflow. 
 
Olive Grove 575-7901 
1905-1985 Zinfandel  
126 Units 
Asked a resident who said he usually must park on the street. 5 min walk to street 
parking. 
 
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
Per resident: “not nearly enough parking. Visitor spaces always taken by 
residents.” He moves his car offsite and gives his parking pass to his family or 
friends when they visit. 
 
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
Residents end up parking in visitor spaces. Have at least two cars per 2 and 3 
bedroom units. 
 
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
People who have more than one car per unit park in visitor parking. Street fills up 
weekends and evenings. 
 

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
People park in the visitor spaces and in areas lined off for deliveries etc. People 
park “all crazy”. If no parking, they go around the corner to street parking. 
 
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
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



From: Murray, Susie
To: Natalie Mattei; Teejay Lowe
Subject: 1385 W. College Avenue (Safeway access off Kowell Road)
Date: Wednesday, October 27, 2021 12:40:00 PM
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Natalie and Teejay,
 
I’ve been having technical issues trying to send another link to you, and I’m hoping this one works.   Project Plans & Traffic Study (outside)
 
Assuming it does, please open then Grading, Drainage and Utilities sheets.  The Overall Site Plan, first page, shows on and off-site improvements.  I checked in with
our Engineering Development Services (EDS) team, and here’s the response I received:
 
Based on the civil site plan, the proposed improvements to Kowell Lane [Road] are on the west half of the street. Once we get more north then that is where the
improvements extend past the street centerline to provide a full 20’ travel lane.
 
The highlighted curb return below looks to be where Safeway routes their deliveries. I tried to match up the civil site plan with where the existing fire hydrants are
located on street view and the portion of improvements extending past the centerline are further north of the delivery entrance.
 

 
Safeway’s driveway entrance off Kowell Lane should not be affected. Perhaps during the construction of the offsite improvements there may be traffic control
extending past Kowell Road’s centerline, but based on the civil site plan the proposed improvements do not extend to Safeway’s eastern half of Kowell Road. They
look to have a 20’ travel lane.
 
I hope this answers your questions pertaining to off-site improvements along Kowell Road. If not, let me know and I’ll do my best to accommodate.
 
Susie
 
Susie Murray | Senior Planner
Planning & Economic Development |100 Santa Rosa Avenue | Santa Rosa, CA 95404
Tel. (707) 543-4348 | Fax (707) 543-3269 | smurray@srcity.org
 

mailto:SMurray@srcity.org
mailto:Natalie.Mattei@albertsons.com
mailto:teejay.lowe@westcollegemgmt.com
https://cityofsantarosa.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/PlanningTeam/EtQY_wP1CC5NjjFey2IJ9tgBW6-JD0NOWZ4gc_BL4QTMaQ?e=0lAtrJ
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P Please consider the environment before printing.

I am working remotely during this time. The City of Santa Rosa has restricted City facilities to the public and is offering in-person City Hall support by appointment only. The Planning and Economic
Development Department has recently launched its Planning Application Portal which contains process checklists for the majority of planning entitlements. You can also check on the status of your permit
application here. For general planning inquiries, please contact planning@srcity.org. To submit permit application materials, please submit all required documents to permitsubmittal@srcity.org.
 
 
 
 

http://srcity.org/QLess
https://srcity.org/3344/Planning-Application-Portal
https://ws.srcity.org/PWMaps/PermitSearch.aspx
mailto:planning@srcity.org
mailto:permitsubmittal@srcity.org


From: Murray, Susie
To: Natalie Mattei
Subject: 1385 W. College Avenue
Date: Monday, December 13, 2021 4:42:00 PM
Attachments: Exhibit A (to be attached to resolution).pdf
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Natalie,
 
Here are the Engineering Conditions. 
 
Susie Murray | Senior Planner
Planning & Economic Development |100 Santa Rosa Avenue | Santa Rosa, CA 95404
Tel. (707) 543-4348 | Fax (707) 543-3269 | smurray@srcity.org
 
still strong_sm

P Please consider the environment before printing.

I am working remotely during this time. The City of Santa Rosa has restricted City facilities to the public and is offering in-
person City Hall support by appointment only. The Planning and Economic Development Department has recently launched its
Planning Application Portal which contains process checklists for the majority of planning entitlements. You can also check on
the status of your permit application here. For general planning inquiries, please contact planning@srcity.org. To submit
permit application materials, please submit all required documents to permitsubmittal@srcity.org.
 
 
 
 

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
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CITY OF SANTA ROSA, CALIFORNIA 


PLANNING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
ENGINEERING DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIVISION 


 
EXHIBIT "A" 


November 23, 2021 
 


WEST COLLEGE APARTMENTS – 136 UNITS 
 1385 West College AVENUE 


DR21-051 
 


I. Applicant's engineer shall obtain the current City Design and Construction 
Standards and the Community Development Department's Standard 
Conditions of Approval dated August 27, 2008 and comply with all 
requirements therein unless specifically waived or altered by written 
variance by the City Engineer. 
 


II. The approval of this project shall be subject to the latest adopted 
ordinances, resolutions, policies and fees adopted by the City Council at the 
time of the building permit review and approval. 


 
III. In addition, the following summary constitutes the recommended conditions 


of approval on the subject application/development based on the plans 
submitted/ date stamped received August 27, 2021.  


 
      PARCEL AND EASEMENT DEDICATIONS 


 


1. The common driveway shall be a minimum of 20-feet wide and shall be 
covered by an Emergency vehicular access (EVA) dedicated to the City of 
Santa Rosa prior to building permit issuance. The driveway’s inside and 
outside radius shall be a minimum of 20-feet and 40-feet in radius 
respectively.  


 
2. A minimum 15-feet wide public water easement shall be dedicated to the 


City of Santa Rosa centered on the alignment of any public water main, 
meter or double detector assembly not in public right of way. 


 
3. West College Avenue shall be dedicated as a four lane Modified Parkway 


along the entire project frontage per City Standard No. 200J. Half width 
street improvements shall consist of a 6-feet wide portion of a median lane, 
one 11-feet wide travel lane, one 10-feet wide travel lane, a 5-feet wide bike 
lane, concrete curb and gutter, a variable width planter at 5-feet wide 
minimum reduced from an 8-feet wide planter strip, a 5.5-feet minimum 
width sidewalk reduced from an standard 6-feet wide, for a total half street 
Right of Way width of 40-feet with a combined 13-feet wide Public Utility 
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easement (PUE) and sidewalk easement located behind the ROW line. 
Parking is not permitted within W. College Avenue frontage.  The curb shall 
remain in its current location and all improvements shall be behind the 
existing curb line.  
 


4. Kowell Lane shall be dedicated as a Minor Street along the entire project 
frontage. Half width street improvements for the west side of the street shall 
consist of a 10-feet wide travel lane, an 8-feet wide parking lane, a 6” 
concrete curb and gutter and a 6-feet wide planter strip, with a 5-feet wide 
sidewalk. The half-street right of way shall be 24-feet wide.   A 13-feet wide 
Public Utility easement (PUE) and public access easement shall also be 
dedicated to the City of Santa Rosa adjacent to the right of way line along 
the street frontage.     


 
5. The Applicant shall dedicate an additional public access easement(s) for 


any public sidewalk, that is located outside of the City Right of Way at their 
sole expense. 
 


6. Obtainment of any offsite easements required to complete the project’s 
storm water drainage and or utilities to City or County standards shall be 
obtained solely by the applicant at the applicants’ sole expense and 
installed by the applicant at the applicants’ sole expense. Initial research 
has not uncovered a documented easement over the open channel 
extending through Assessor Parcel Number 010-374-015.  If any 
modifications are required to the existing open channel or any portions of 
the storm drain system that exist within this parcel, work will not be 
permitted to proceed until all easement rights are solidified. 
 


7. The applicant shall allow a storm drain maintenance and access easement 
over their property to the City of Santa Rosa to access and maintain the 
storm drain features, pipes, junctions and channels along the western 
property line to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The exact location of 
the easement shall be determined during first plan review and be recorded 
prior to building permit issuance.     
 


8. All dedication costs shall be borne by the Applicant or property owner, 
including preparation of any legal descriptions, plats, title reports, and deeds 
that are necessary.  Legal descriptions and plats (“R” sheets) shall be 
prepared by a registered Land Surveyor or Civil Engineer licensed to 
practice Land Surveying in the State of California and approved by the City 
Engineer.  City forms are available at the City of Santa Rosa Planning and 
Economic Development Department, Engineering Development Services 
Division, Room 5, City Hall.  
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 PUBLIC STREET IMPROVEMENTS  
 


9. An Encroachment Permit is required prior to issuance of the building permit. 
Any improvements proposed or required, within the public right shall be 
reviewed and approved with the Encroachment Permit application. Only 
Construction plans submitted with the Encroachment Permit Application are 
final plans and shall be approved for construction. Contact Engineering 
Development Services at 543-3200, located at 100 Santa Rosa Avenue, 
Room 5, as soon as possible to begin Encroachment Permit application 
processing. Encroachment Permit application processing may take 4-6 
weeks. Submit plans showing all work in the public right of way, or in public 
easements, including all work on public utilities (water meter boxes, sewer 
lateral cleanouts, backflow devices, etc.)  
 


10. West College Avenue shall be improved as a modified Parkway along the 
entire project frontage per City Standard detail 200J.  The existing curb shall 
remain in its current location. Half width street improvements shall consist of 
new improvements located behind the existing curb. Improvements to West 
College Avenue shall include the removal of the existing corner 
ramps/sidewalk, and two existing residential driveway approaches. New 
improvements include modifications to City Standards of a reduced width 
5.5-feet wide sidewalk, installation of sections of 6” vertical curb and gutter 
and an variable width and reduced width to a 5-feet wide minimum planter 
strip down from an 8-feet wide planter strip in order to facilitate variations 
along the West College frontage.  Install City Standard street trees and 
irrigation. Install cobra style streetlights as applicable. Install a multi-family 
driveway approach per City Standard 250D.  Minimum width of a two-way 
commercial driveway shall be 24-feet or as approved by the City engineer. 
Install an ADA compliant access to each building from the public sidewalk. 
 


11. Traffic re-striping of W. College Avenue shall be postponed until such time 
as the properties on the south side of W College re-develop, allowing the 
shift of the striping to the south for proper re-alignment of the striping to 
include the complete bike lane width on the north. The existing cross-
section of College Avenue is 64-feet from curb face to curb face, which shall 
allow in the future, for a half street cross-section of one 5-feet wide bike 
lane, one 11-feet wide westbound travel lane, one 10-feet wide westbound 
travel lane and a 6-feet wide portion of the left/right turn lane or median on 
the north side of the centerline, per input from the City Traffic Engineer.    
 


12. Kowell Lane (North and South cross-sections) shall be improved as a 
City Standard Minor Street per City Standard Detail 200E along the entire 
project frontage. Half-width street improvements for the west side of the 
street shall consist of a 10-feet wide travel lane, with a 8-feet wide parking 
lane, a 6” concrete curb and gutter and a six-feet wide planter strip, with a 5-
feet wide  sidewalk, and a combination 13-feet wide PUE and public access 
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easement.  
 


13. Kowell Lane (North cross section only) The applicant shall install an 
additional minimum 10-feet width of all-weather pavement for use as a 
travel lane on Kowell Lane from the southern property line of the parcel 
owned by GC&P Properties (APN # 010-510-020) to the north Property line 
of the project on the easterly portion of the Kowell Lane centerline. The 
additional pavement is required in order to reconstruct the substandard 
roadway base to City development standards along the project frontage and 
provide a minimum 20-feet width all-weather travel lane for approximately 
200 LF along the northern frontage of the project.    
 


14. Improvements to the northwest corner of Kowell Lane and West College 
Avenue shall consist of ADA compliant pedestrian ramps per Caltrans 
standard A88A within the Limits of ROW. The applicant shall install and or 
re-install a thermo-plastic pedestrian crossing in the east – west and north-
south direction of travel along West College Avenue. Dedicate additional 
ROW if required. Install the new curb return to city standards with a modified 
radius of 25 feet for an arterial street. Improvements shall be as reviewed 
and approved by the Santa Rosa Public Works Department for the project 
frontage.    
 


15. The applicant shall submit Public Improvement Plans for the review and 
approval of the City Engineer prior to building permit issuance. Public 
Improvement plans shall include a complete set of offsite construction 
drawings including a lighting plan, utility plans, storm drain plans, erosion 
control plan, BMP construction plans, sanitary sewer main extension plans, 
driveway aprons, sidewalk and curb replacement plans, and offsite signing 
and striping plans as applicable.   
 


16. All public and private sidewalk shall maintain a continuous ADA accessible 
surface a minimum of 4-feet wide. Concrete sidewalk shall transition to 
match the existing grades to adjacent properties.     
 


17. Existing streets cut by new services shall require edge grinding per City 
Standard 209, Trenching per Standard 215 and an A.C. over lay.  
 


18. Private structures such as permanent fences and BMPS etc., shall not 
encroach into public utility easements unless approved under a variance by 
the City Engineer. 


 
TRAFFIC 


 
19. Appropriate street name signs, pavement markings, and regulatory signs, 


as approved by the City Engineer, shall be installed.  Applicant shall be 
responsible for any transitional improvements required between new 
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construction and existing improvements. 
 


20. As applicable, no Parking signs shall be posted for the north side of West 
College Avenue along the project frontage if not present.  
 


21. As applicable, City Standard 611 cobra style streetlights shall be installed 
along Kowell Lane and West College Avenue using LEOTEK LED fixtures.  
Streetlight spacing, wattages, and locations shall be determined during the 
improvement plan review process.  
 


22. Electrical boxes for streetlights and signals shall be provided with grounded 
vandal resistant inserts, McCain Tamper Resistant Inserts or City approved 
equal, in streetlight pull boxes at locations as directed by the City.  Catalog 
cuts shall be provided with the first plan check submittal for review and 
approval by the City Engineer.   The streetlight improvement plans shall 
include the following note; “The contractor may use their own locks during 
construction for ease of access, however once the conductors in the pull 
box are live the contractor shall coordinate with the City Inspector to have 
the City lock installed.   Electrical pull boxes in planter strips shall be 
provided with a 2-feet concrete apron around box.”  
 


23. New services (electrical, telephone, cable or conduit) to new structures shall 
be installed underground. As applicable, the applicant shall underground 
overhead utilities along the project frontage per City code at their sole 
expense. 
 


24.  Applicant shall coordinate, and where necessary, pay for the relocation of   
any power poles or other existing public utilities, as necessary. 
 


25. Provide sufficient line of sight so a vehicle exiting the project shall not 
impede or cause the oncoming traffic on West College Avenue and Kowell 
Lane to radically alter their speed, based on Table 405.1A of the Caltrans’ 
Highway Design Manual. Tree canopies shall be maintained at least 7-feet 
off the ground and landscaping shall be maintained at maximum 36” height 
within the stopping site. Install “No parking” signs and paint the curbs red 
within the site distance areas.  
 


26. Avoid installation of any physical features (signs, landscaping, mailboxes, 
etc.) along the West College Avenue frontage of the parcel within the traffic 
site distance triangles. Landscaping shall be maintained to be no more than 
36” in height for low vegetation and tree canopies shall be maintained at 7-
feet minimum height along the site triangle by the owner. 
 


27. Comply with current standards for parking lot and accessible stall 
dimensions and signage. Submit an on-site sign and striping plan for the 
new parking lot improvements at first review. Submit parking lot and street 
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lighting plans for review and approval. Lighting shall meet minimum lighting 
requirements. 
 


28. The project Applicant shall be responsible for repairing/removing any debris, 
damage, or deterioration occurring to existing local streets and/or private 
driveways as a direct result of construction activity related to installation of 
the improvements (grading, street construction, utility installation, etc.).  
Required repair shall involve patching, cleaning, sealing, or overlaying 
affected areas as appropriate to return Kowell Lane and or West College 
Avenue to as good as condition as it was in prior to construction.  If the 
project Applicant does not act prudently in a timely manner, the City shall, at 
its discretion, perform the correction and charge the owner/subdivider for all 
costs and overhead incurred. 
 


29. The applicant shall provide centerline striping along Kowell Lane for the first 
50 feet from the intersection limit line from West College Avenue.  
 


30. The applicant shall provide crosswalk striping at the intersection of Kowell 
Lane and West College Avenue from the northwest corner to the northeast 
corner. 
 


PRIVATE DRIVEWAY IMPROVEMENTS 
 


31. A 2-way commercial driveway apron shall be constructed in accordance 
with City Standard detail 250A on Kowell Lane and Std. 250D on West 
College Avenue entrances. The private driveways shall have a minimum 
width of 24-feet at the back of sidewalk, unless otherwise approved by 
variance by the City Engineer, accessing through an additional 6-feet in 
width at the curb cut. Provide for a public sidewalk, level portion of sidewalk 
behind the driveway ramp. Paint onsite curbs red to indicate no parking 
along the entry ways.  The driveway shall be built to City Minor street 
structural standards and bordered with a 6-inch concrete curb at the edge of 
asphalt at least 10-feet behind the driveway aprons as applicable. 
 


32. The applicant shall install traffic control signing and striping in the private 
driveway and parking lot including 1. Directional traffic striping 2. ADA 
compliant parking lot stall signing and striping. 3. ADA compliant access(es) 
to the buildings from the public sidewalk. 


 
33. Onsite lighting of the private parking lot shall meet minimum city standards 


requirements for safety and acceptable luminary standards. 
 


34. A soils and geologic report shall be provided with the building and public 
improvement plans submitted for review. The report shall address the new 
pavement sections within the parking lot and on Kowell Lane for adequacy 
to City codes. 
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35. Maximum grade difference at project boundary to offsite property shall be 


less than 1 feet vertically, unless reviewed and approved by the City 
Engineer.  
 


36. Any offsite drainage entering the site shall be either conveyed through the 
site, via a private drainage system with accompanying easements dedicated 
to the upstream property owners, or accepted into the private drainage and 
LID system for the project. The final LID design shall address the 
acceptance of any offsite flows.  


 
37. Submit grading and drainage plans which shall show typical and specific 


cross-sections at all exterior property lines and interior lot lines indicating 
the adjacent elevations at the join grades to adjacent parcels including 
graded slopes, swales, fences, retaining walls and sound walls as 
applicable.  
 


38. Grading for this subdivision shall be subject to the Geotechnical 
Investigation  “Proposed residential development, Planned Apartments, 
1385 W. College Ave.”, as prepared for McKellar McGowan as prepared by 
Bauer Associates, Inc., Consulting Geotechnical Consultants, Job No. 
520.1, dated February 26,  and or April 1, 2020 and all updates and 
addendums thereto.   
 


39. Final Building pad compaction certifications shall be signed and sealed by a 
Registered Soils Engineer and certified for grade elevations by a Civil 
Engineer certifying each building pad.  Certifications shall be submitted to 
EDS for review prior to building permit issuance.   


 
PUBLIC STORM DRAINAGE  


 
40. Other agency permits, as required to complete the project, shall be obtained 


by the Applicant at the Applicant’s sole expense.   
 


41. Public storm drainage shall be designed to City of Santa Rosa Design and 
Construction Standards and Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) current 
2020 flood management design manual standards by a licensed Civil 
Engineer. All storm water run-off shall be collected via an underground 
drainage system and discharged to the nearest public downstream facility 
possessing adequate capacity to accept the run-off. Preliminary and final 
storm drain hydrology and hydraulic design reports as approved by the 
Sonoma County Water Agency or a designated agent shall be provided to 
the City of Santa Rosa for the city file prior to public improvement plan and 
encroachment permit issuance. Provide engineering calculations of 
adequacy for the downstream storm drain connections for project flow 
volumes. Upsize any storm drainage facilities that do not have adequate 
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capacity to the approval of the City Engineer.   
 


42. Drainage patterns shall follow the Regional Master Drainage Plan as 
depicted in the current master drainage studies available for the local area 
as provided by Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA).  
Changes/diversions to the contributory drainage areas for regional water 
sheds are not permitted without City Engineer review and approval.   
 


43. As applicable, all drainage flows from offsite shall be intercepted at the 
property line and conveyed through a private system to discharge into the 
public right of way. Onsite storm drain design shall be reviewed and 
approved by the City Building Official. Regional Public storm drain design 
shall be reviewed and approved by SCWA for compliance with County and 
City design standards.  
 


44. All onsite storm drain inlets shall be labeled per the City standard detail 409 
- “DRAINS TO CREEK” or an approved equal. 
 


45. Contractor shall not use the sanitary sewer system or storm drainage 
system to release construction water from the site unless they have a valid 
discharge permit to do so. Application for Industrial construction water 
discharge permit can be obtained from the City of Santa Rosa 
Environmental Compliance Department. Contact Renae Gundy at 707-543-
4368.  
 


46. Any existing storm drain stub outs to the property that shall not be used 
shall be abandoned at the main per City Design Standards. 
 


47. Drainage from landscape areas are not allowed to cross over curb or 
sidewalk and are to outlet to a street or drainage channel through City 
Standard curb drains or other acceptable means.  
 


48. Lot drainage, retention or detention systems, and private storm drain 
facilities shall be approved by the Chief Building Official's designated 
representative. All private drainage facilities shall be privately owned and 
maintained.  


 
49. All offsite storm drain work and coordination with any adjacent neighbors 


to the project, and all off site construction and or access easements as 
needed to construct the project shall be obtained at the sole cost of the 
applicant prior to entitlement. 
 


50.  If flows exceed street capacity, flows shall be collected via an underground 
drainage system (with minimum 15" diameter and maximum 72" diameter 
pipe sizes) and discharged to the nearest approved downstream facility 
possessing adequate capacity to accept the runoff, per the City's design 
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requirements.  Such runoff systems shall be placed within public street right-
of-way wherever possible.  
 


51. Private drainage systems are to be connected to a public system from a 
private field inlet located behind the sidewalk and or through a minimum 15-
inch RCP or HDPE storm drainpipe through the public right-of-way, public 
utility easement or storm drain easement to a public drainage structure. No 
blind connections are permitted into public storm drain system. Public storm 
drains shall be shown on the plans in a design profile.  Install a city standard 
storm drain structure at any change of pipe size, pipe grade or pipe 
direction.  
 


52. For purposes of leak detection and maintenance access, no reinforced 
concrete shall be designed over publicly maintained storm water drainpipe 
facilities.  Unreinforced concrete shall be allowed under special 
circumstances such as crosswalks.  Storm drain inlets shall be located 
outside of the concrete area. Storm drainage facilities in the private road 
and private driveway shall be maintained by the lot owner.  
 


53. The applicant shall install a 12-feet wide minimum width paved storm 
drainage maintenance road/access driveway in order for a City maintenance 
truck and or staff to access the existing storm drain pipes/channel junction 
area. The maintenance access shall allow head-in parking for a vactor truck 
to reach the storm drainage junction structure of the 24” pipe and the open 
channel. This truck access shall be located in a widened parking stall 
approximately 216 feet from the ROW line along the western property line in 
the parking and planter area. The maintenance access/ access parking 
space shall be made immediately accessible to the City 24-hours a day 
upon notice to the Lot owner/property manager to coordinate City 
maintenance access and otherwise can be used for removable auto 
parking.  Exact design shall be determined at first plan review. The parking 
stall may be replaced solely with the access driveway if the owner is not 
responsive to providing city maintenance access when requested.   
 


DETENTION BASINS 
 


54. A final storm drain design analysis that shall address the storm drainage 
retention/detention design and or project storm drainage out fall connection 
to a public storm drain system via an existing private open channel to the 
west shall be submitted at first plan review. A private engineered private 
retention/detention basin design solution may be presented to and approved 
by the City Engineer or his designated representative. The storm drain 
Engineering design may be required to be submitted for review and 
approval, as applicable, to other jurisdictional agencies, by the applicant 
including the California State Water Quality Control Board if it is proposed 
for use as a best management practice (BMP) for storm water infiltration or 
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treatment purposes and or Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) if it also 
detains storm water hydraulically to prevent downstream flooding. If a 
retention or detention basin is designed for the final project, then there shall 
be no net increase in storm water runoff due to the development. All 
detention facilities shall drain in 72 hours or less, based on Sonoma County 
Mosquito Abatement District regulations. Private detention basins shall be 
located solely on private property and not within public utility easements.  
 


55. As an alternative to an on-site private storm drainage detention system, the 
Lot Owner may elect to improve the downstream drainage system to 
provide adequate capacity to contain the 10 to 100-year storm (as 
determined by an engineered Hydrology and or Hydraulic study) all the way 
to College Creek outfall. In addition, irrespective of the developer’s desires, 
these downstream drainage improvements may be required by the City if 
the Developer’s engineer fails to finalize an approved on-site drainage 
detention design. In conjunction with this alternative, the Lot Owner shall be 
required to obtain a 15-feet wide minimum public storm drain easement 
extending from the project to the creek if proposed facilities are not located 
within an existing Right of way, public utility easement and or storm 
drainage easement. The location of this easement may constitute a logical 
downstream extension of the storm drain system and shall meet approval of 
the Planning and Economic Development Department and City Public 
Works Department. Approval of the entitlement does not obligate the City to 
obtain any easements on the Lot Owners’ behalf. 
 
 


56.  As applicable, the private detention basin(s) shall be privately maintained 
and operated by the lot owner in its totality and for perpetuity. The applicant 
shall enter into a formal “Private retention/Detention basin maintenance 
agreement” prior to building permit issuance with the City of Santa Rosa 
with the maintenance responsibility to be given solely to the lot owner and 
privately operated.  
 


57. As applicable, detention basins shall not be placed in conflict with any 
proposed private or public utility lines or utility service lines. The storm water 
detention system shall be designed to City of Santa Rosa Design and 
Construction standards and per SCWA requirements. The basin shall have 
an emergency overflow structure and a high flow conveyance route per the 
most current SCWA flood management Design Manual. Detention Basin 
Calculations for the final design shall be based on an accepted hydrograph 
approach or as approved by the City Engineer. 


 
STORM WATER COMPLIANCE (SWLID) 


 
58. The Applicant’s engineer shall comply with all requirements of the latest 


edition of the City Standard Urban Storm Water Low Impact Development 







EXHIBIT A 
 
PAGE 11 of 18 
 


Plan (SWLID) Guidelines. Final onsite Improvement Plans shall incorporate 
all SWLID Best Management Practices (BMP’s) and shall be accompanied 
by a Final Onsite Storm Water Mitigation Plan which shall address the storm 
water quality and quantity.  Final Improvement Plans shall be accompanied 
by a maintenance agreement or comparable document to assure 
continuous maintenance in perpetuity of the SWLID BMP’s and shall include 
a maintenance schedule. 
 


59. Perpetual maintenance of SWLID Best Management Practices (BMP’s) 
shall be the responsibility of the lot owner.  The Lot owners shall be 
responsible for performing and documenting an annual inspection of the 
BMP’s on their respective properties.  The annual reports shall be retained 
by the Lot owner for a period of the latest five years and shall be made 
available to the City upon request.  
 


60. After the SWLID BMP improvements have been constructed, the Applicant’s 
Civil Engineer or qualified professional is to prepare and sign a written 
certification that they were constructed and installed as required. Written 
certification of SWLID BMP’s is to be received by the City prior to issuance 
of occupancy and acceptance of the Public Street improvements. Written 
certification of SWLID required improvements is to be received by the City 
prior to occupancy. The maintenance schedule and the Final SUSMP are to 
be included as part of the owners’ records.  All BMP’s shall be maintained, 
replaced, and repaired by the lot owner unless an agreement is accepted in 
writing by the City Engineer.  
 


61. The SUSMP “Declaration of Maintenance” document shall be recorded prior 
to Building permit issuance and shall include the underground detention 
basin, if applicable.  
 


62. BMP’s and private drainage facilities shall be located on private property 
and not within the Public Utility easements and/or utility easement.   
 


63. Show roof drain outfalls on the contributory area drainage maps and 
indicate which BMP treatment facility is responsible to treat the roof water. 
Show enough finish grading elevations to verify the contributory areas are 
correct.    
 


64. A Storm Water Pollution Protection Plan (SWPPP) shall be required at 
building plan submittal to show protection of the existing storm drain 
facilities during construction. This project is required to comply with all 
current State Water Board General Construction Permit Requirements. 
 


65. The Civil Engineering plans shall show sufficient construction details and 
dimensions of each BMP device on the drawings, so the BMP may be 
replaced in the future. Landscape plans and civil plans shall be coordinated 
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with the approved SUSMP report and show the BMP locations clearly to 
prevent them from being filled in with landscape materials. The landscape 
and civil plans shall be updated to reflect the final BMP locations, shapes, 
sizes and construction dimensions to install the BMP features per the final 
construction.  
 


66. No debris, soil, silt, sand, bark, slash, sawdust, rubbish, cement or concrete 
washings, oil or petroleum products, or other organic or earthen material 
from any construction or associated activity of whatever nature, shall be 
allowed to enter into or be placed where it may be washed by rainfall into 
the storm drain system. When operations are completed, any excess 
material or debris shall be removed from the work area. 
 


67. As applicable, where bio-retention basins are installed, then transformers, 
meter boxes, cleanouts, fire hydrants, etc. shall be located without conflict 
with the basins.  Locations of infrastructure shall be reviewed during plan 
check. Each trench crossing shall extend the length of a BMP basin by 5 
additional linear feet. Locations of infrastructure should be present on the 
plans and shall be reviewed during plan check. 
 


a. Ample manhole access to the underground infiltration 
chambers/detention basins shall be provided for each installation for 
maintenance access and visual inspections.  


 
BUILDING – (from Michael Enright dated September 29, 2021) 


 
68. Obtain a demolition permit for structures to be removed. 


 
69. Provide a geotechnical investigation and soils report with the building permit 


application.  The investigation shall include subsurface exploration and the 
report shall include grading, drainage, paving and foundation design 
recommendations. 


 
70. Obtain building permits for the proposed project. 


 
WATER AND WASTEWATER 


 
71. Demand fees shall be required and shall be determined after review of the 


building permit application. Unless otherwise approved through a deferral 
agreement, water, irrigation and sewer demand processing and meter 
installation fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of any Building Permit.  
The applicant may contact Water Engineering Services to determine 
estimated fees and shall be determined at first Building Plan review.  
 


72. Water services shall be provided per Section X of the Water System Design 
Standards. Multi-family residential, commercial clubhouse buildings and 
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irrigation uses shall be metered separately. Separate water meters may be 
provided for each unit, each building and or a master meter may be installed 
for a cluster of buildings. Water Engineering Services suggests more than 
one meter for the entire project. A separate irrigation service shall be 
provided for landscaping. Meter locations and configurations shall be 
reviewed during first plan review.  
 


73. The Fire Department requires fire sprinklers in all structures. The water 
services and meters shall be sized to meet fire protection, domestic and 
irrigation uses. A dedicated fire protection service with two - associated 
double detector check valve(s) per City Standard detail no. 880 shall be 
installed to serve a looped fire main. A double check detector valve shall be 
installed at each connection point to the public system. Fireline detector 
check locations shall be determined with the plan check phase of the 
Improvement Plans. Submit flow calculations to the Engineering 
Development Services Division during the Public Improvement plans review 
phase concurrent with the first plan check phase of the Building Plans to 
determine adequate sizing. 
 


74. Install onsite private sewer laterals with a sewer clean out per City Standard 
Detail No. 513 to the sewer main to serve the lot. Sewer laterals are owned 
and maintained by the lot owner to the main.  
 


75. The existing sections of the 6-inch sewer main in Kowell Lane shall be 
upsized to a minimum of 8-inches. Additionally, a new 8-inch sewer main 
shall be extended in Kowell Lane to the northern boundary of the project. 
Any changes in pipe size shall occur at a manhole. The main extension 
shall be designed and installed per the City of Santa Rosa Water Design 
and Construction standards 2018 and current standard practices.     
 


76. This Project may be eligible for credit and/or reimbursement for public 
improvements to be built by the applicant.  It is the Developer’s 
responsibility to coordinate that reimbursement consistent with the City’s 
procedures for reimbursement.  
 


77. The engineer shall provide a detailed utility plan showing on-site and offsite 
sewer, water, fire protection systems and their connections to existing sewer 
and water facilities. The plan shall show any wells and or septic systems to 
be abandoned. When a separate irrigation meter is required, an irrigation 
plan showing maximum GPM flow required at each control valve and 
connections to existing facilities shall be provided. Submit Public 
Improvement plans for the City Engineer’s review and approval for public 
improvements prior to building permit issuance. 


 
78. The Fire and Water departments have a 99-unit limit on a single dead-end 


water main feed. A looped connection may be required for phased 
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construction also based on water pressure tests. 
 


79. Any septic systems within the project boundaries shall be abandoned per 
Permit Sonoma and City of Santa Rosa Building Division requirements. 
 


80. If wells exist on the property, then the following apply: 
 


a. Wells may not serve more than one parcel, and any lines from existing 
wells that cross property lines must be severed. 
 


b. Retention of wells must comply with City and County Codes. Retention 
of wells must be approved by the Sonoma County Health Department. 
An approved Backflow prevention device shall be installed on any 
connection to the City Water System.  


 
c. Abandonment of wells requires a permit from Permit Sonoma. 


 
81. Submit landscape and irrigation plans in conformance with the Water 


Efficient Landscape Ordinance adopted by the Santa Rosa City Council, 
Resolution No. 4051, dated Oct 27, 2015.  Plans shall be submitted with the 
Building Permit application. 


 
 
82. The applicant shall install two Combination Water service(s) per City 


Standards 870 for the fire sprinkler, fire hydrants, domestic and irrigation 
meters with a looped connection for the lot. The exact configuration shall be 
reviewed at first building review and is based on the water pressure 
calculations.   


 
83. The applicant shall install a separate irrigation service with a reduced 


pressure backflow device per current City Standards 876. See Section X.O. 
of the Water System Design Standards. Meter size is dependent on peak 
demand and shall be determined upon review of irrigation plans. Irrigation 
demand, processing and meter fees shall be paid prior to issuance of 
building permit.  


 
84. All landscape and domestic water meters shall be protected with reduced 


pressure backflow devices per City Standards 876. 
 
85. No plumbing for landscape irrigation or any other use shall cross lot lines. 
 
86. Any existing water or sewer services that shall not be used shall be 


abandoned at the main per City Design Standards. Abandon the existing 
residential services to the existing houses.   


 
87. New sewer laterals shall be provided with a clean out at the right of way line 
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or edge of easement per City Standard 513. All portions of the private sewer 
lateral extending through the public right of way or any public utility 
easements shall be maintained by the property owner and shall be labeled 
as private on the public improvement plans.  


 
88. Submit a full fire flow analysis to the Fire Department for review.  


Connections to the City water system shall be dependent on meeting fire 
flow requirements.  Private hydrants shall be required on site and the 
locations shall be determined with the Building Permit Application. Fire 
sprinklers shall be required in addition to the private hydrants.  If a public fire 
hydrant is required, the location shall be determined during the plan check 
process of the Improvement Plans.   
 


89. Unless determined by Final Fire Flow Calculations, the applicant shall design 
and install the water main in Kowell Lane per Section VII of the Water System 
Design Standards.  


 
90. Water Engineering Services provides mapping of private onsite water mains 


and fire hydrants for the Fire Department and processes the fee collection 
and meter installation for the fireline.  Submit two copies of the approved 
onsite plans showing private firelines and private fire hydrants locations to 
Water Engineering Services prior to requesting meter sets and commencing 
service.  Refer to section XI.A of the Water System Design Standards for 
submittal of plans for private fire systems. 


 
FIRE – (from Scott Moon dated September 22, 2021) 
 


91. A Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment shall be provided to the Fire 


Department Hazardous Material Program for review. Phase 1 shall be 


approved prior to issuance of any grading, demolition or construction permit. 


92. The structures will be required to be protected by an automatic fire sprinkler 
system designed to NFPA 13 and 13R.   


a. The Fire Department Connection (FDC) for the sprinkler and standpipe 
systems will be required within 100 feet of a fire hydrant. *Reviewed 
with Adobe Associates 8/2/21. 


b. Based on the size of the project and available water supply a fire pump 
may be required to support the buildings suppression systems. 


93. The 3- story structures will be required to install a standpipe system in the 
building. 


94. Fire flow and location of fire hydrants shall be installed in accordance with 
California Fire Code Chapter 5, Appendix B, and Appendix C as adopted by 
the City of Santa Rosa. 
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a.  A Fire Flow test shall be performed prior to delivery of combustible 
materials. 


95. Required Fire Department access roads shall be signed “No Parking – Fire 
Lane” per current Fire Department standards. 


a.  Parking allowed only in designated spots.  All curbs shall be painted 
red and posted “No Parking”.   


b.  Based on the size of the project there will be a requirement for two 
points of access to the site. 


c.  Access points shall be located remote from one another from the site.  


96. CA Fire Code requires fire apparatus access roads (“Fire Lanes”) to within 
150 feet hose-pull distance of all first-floor exterior walls. 


a.  For structures exceeding 30 feet in height, there shall be a minimum of 
26-foot access provided along the longest side of structures that 
exceed 30 feet in height and allows for placement of the Fire 
Department aerial apparatus to be positioned 15 – 30 feet from the 
face of the building.   


b.  There shall be no projections or obstructions that would limit the 
articulation of the aerial apparatus.  


97. The structure shall have addressing that complies with the Fire Department 
Standards. 


a.  All addresses required to be displayed on a building or other 
permanent structure shall be illuminated during all hours of darkness. 


b.  A complex directory shall be required at the access points for the site. 


98. The following are a list of deferred plan submittal items that will be required 
by the Fire Department - additional items may be called out: 


a.  Phase I 


b.  Private Underground Fire Main 


c.  Fire Sprinkler System 


d.  Standpipe System 


e.  Fire Alarm 


f.   Fire Pump (may be required) 


g.  Emergency Responder Radio System (may be required) 


99. A Fire Department key box shall be provided for access to the commercial 
structure. 


a. Should a gate be planned to the site at Sonoma Hwy., the gate shall be 
equipped with a Knox Company key operated electric gate release 
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switch with dual key option for the Police Department. Contact the Fire 
Department at 707-543-3500 for the order form. 


 
b. The gate shall be located a minimum of 20 foot from the public way to 


allow for apparatus to pull completely off the roadway. 
 


c. The gate shall be equipped with an Opticom controller to allow for 
opening capability via the emergency lights and strobe device on the 
emergency vehicles. 


d. During a power failure, gate shall release for manual operation OR be 
equipped with standby power or connected to the building emergency 
panel. 


 
e. In addition to sending the request to exit signal to the gate operator, the 


magnetic detection loop (when activated) shall prohibit the gate from 
closing upon fire apparatus  


 
100. Storage or use of any hazardous materials at the site will require a 


Hazardous Materials Inventory Statement to be submitted to the Fire Dept. 
for review via the California Environmental Reporting System (CERS). 
Materials more than the permit amounts will require a Hazardous 
Materials Management Plan to be submitted to the Fire Dept. for review 
and approval and may require payment of Hazardous Material Use or 
Hazardous Waste Generator permit fees. 


101. Access roads and water supplies for fire protection shall be installed and  
made serviceable prior to storage or construction of any combustible 
materials and/or vertical construction at the site.  


102. Site shall also be maintained to comply with the City of Santa Rosa’s 
Weed and Rubbish Abatement Ordinance. 


                                      
         RECREATION AND PARKS – (from Tim Bernard dated November 2, 2021) 


 
103. Street trees will be required and planted by the developer. Selection will be 


made from the City’s approved master plan list and inspected by the Parks 
Division may occur. Planting shall be done in accordance with the City 
Standards and Specifications for Planting Parkway Trees. Copies of the 
master street tree list and the standards are available at the Parks Division 
Office (707) 543-3770.  This declaration shall be added to the General 
Notes of the improvement plans. 


 
104. Unless otherwise approved through a deferral agreement, parks 


acquisition and/or park development fees shall be paid at the time of 
building permit issuance. The fee amount shall be determined by the 
resolution in effect at the time. 
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105. All landscaping shall be privately maintained and irrigated. Property owners 


and/or homeowners’ association shall be responsible for the irrigation and 
maintenance of the street trees and maintenance of the planter strips in 
front of and along side of their lots.  


 


 
_______________________11/23/2021_______ 
  
CLEVE GURNEY - EDS ASSISTANT ENGINEER 
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From: Murray, Susie
To: Natalie.Mattei@albertsons.com
Cc: DBrown@adobeinc.com
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] 1385 West College, Santa Rosa
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 2:40:00 PM
Attachments: 1385 W College Ave - Notice of Neighborhood Meeting and DRB Meeting - August 18 and 19, 2021.pdf
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Hi Natalie,
 
We don’t have a formal project yet.  This is confusing because, you’re right, there was another
housing project approved for the same site recently. The attached notice was sent to invite the

public to the both the Neighborhood Meeting on August 18th, where the applicant will introduce the

NEW proposal to neighbors, and the Concept Design Review meeting on August 19th, where the
applicant team will present the proposal to the Design Review Board.  I’ve attached the narrative
provided by the applicant for your information.  I strongly encourage you to attend at least one of
the meetings, if not both. 
 
In the meantime, I’ve copied Dave Brown, the applicant’s representative, on this email.  You can also
reach him by phone at 541-2300.  If you have project specific questions that are not answered in the
narrative, you’re probably best served by contacted him at this point.
 
Because we don’t have a project, I haven’t started a mailing list.  Do you want a mailed notice or an
email?
 
I hope this helps and that you can join us for the meetings.
 
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
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mailto:DBrown@adobeinc.com
http://srcity.org/QLess
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https://srcity.org/3344/Planning-Application-Portal
https://ws.srcity.org/PWMaps/PermitSearch.aspx
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 NOTICE OF TWO PUBLIC MEETINGS


NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING
Wednesday, August 18, 2021, at or after 5:00 P.M. 


Virtual Public Meeting Format


PROJECT NAME - Aviara


PROJECT ADDRESS - 1385 West College Avenue


PROJECT DESCRIPTION - This is a proposal to construct a 136-unit affordable 
housing project, comprised of two- and three-bedroom apartments with 
associated amenities. The application has been filed by Jeff Johnson, on behalf 
of McKellar McGowen Real Estate Land Development; File No. PRJ21-017


100 SANTA ROSA AVENUE, ROOM 3
SANTA ROSA, CA, 95404


88-0810


PROJECT LOCATION MAP 1385 W. COLLEGE AVENUE


The City of Santa Rosa does not discriminate against individuals with disabilities in its employment, services, benefits, facilities, programs, or activities. Requests for accommodations, auxiliary aids, 
or services necessary to participate in a City program, service, or activity, including printed information in alternate formats, are available by contacting the City Clerk's Office at 707-543-3015 (TTY 
Relay at 711) or CityClerk@SRCity.Org. Requests should be submitted as far in advance as possible, but no later than two business days before the scheduled meeting.


PURPOSE OF MEETINGS 
Neighborhood Meeting
Introduce the project to interested members of the public.


Concept Design Review
To provide an opportunity for non-binding comments from the 
Design Review Board (DRB) to the applicant and interested citizens. 
Concept review is designed to offer advice and suggestions only and 
does not result in any actions by the DRB. Participation instructions 
are available at srcity.org/designreview.


JOIN THE MEETINGS
To slow the spread of COVID-19 and to protect the health of the 
public and staff, the City is conducting virtual public meetings:


Neighborhood Meeting
www.zoom.us/join - Meeting ID 939 1893 3852


(877) 853-5257 (Toll Free) - Meeting ID 939 1893 3852


Concept Design Review
www.zoom.us/join - Meeting ID 812 5014 4897 


(877) 853-5257 (Toll Free) - Meeting ID 812 5014 4897


Public Comments will be accepted during both virtual public meetings. 
You may also submit comments prior to the meeting to:


Susie Murray, Senior Planner
707-543-4348 or SMurray@SRCity.org


Meeting access information (including instructions) and 
meeting documents are available at srcity.org/designreview.
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Aviara Design Concept Narrative 
 


Aviara is a proposed 3-story apartment project with 136 units, 100% affordable to low income renters, 
on 3.92 acres at 1385 West College Avenue in the City of Santa Rosa. The project will have 84  
2 Bedroom/1 Bath units, 52 3 Bedroom/2 Bath units and 174 parking spaces.   Each unit will feature a 
private balcony or patio with adjacent storage. 
 
The project is located in the City’s North Station Area Specific Plan, is zoned R-3-30 and has a Medium-
High Residential land use designation, which allows residential development with densities up to 30 
units per gross acre allowed by right.  With a 35% density bonus (a 100% density bonus is permitted in 
the Specific Plan area), up to 41 units per acre would be allowed. The development proposes a density 
of just under 35 units per acre.  
 
There will be a total of 6 buildings each ranging from 32 to 37 feet high with asymmetrical roof lines (a 
45-foot height limit applies in this zone).  Five buildings will have 8 units per floor for a total of 24 units 
per building. The sixth building will have 4 units and a community center on the first floor and 6 units 
on the second and third floors for a total of 16 units.  Access to the second and third floor units will be 
through interior stairwells with open air ventilation and light on either side.  The architecture will have 
modern colors to complement the multiple off-set planes and varied roof heights. The construction 
type will be type VB with a 13R sprinkler system. All buildings will be slab on grade. 
 
The site is in a mostly developed, largely residential area with a large supermarket and shopping center 
directly to the east as well as park assets to the west (notably Finley Community Park located 
approximately ¼ mile west).   A 75 foot easement borders the west side of the property with single 
family detached housing to the north and West College Avenue to the south.   
 
All main building entries orient toward the street, with surface parking located to the rear and sides of 
the property.  The project will have front driveway access to and from West College Avenue and rear 
driveway access to and from Kowell Lane to provide ample circulation throughout the property. Thus, 
the West College Avenue and Kowell Lane frontages will be activated with attractive architecture and 
landscaping.  
 
Resident amenities will include a community center with a meeting/study/lounge space, computer 
stations, restrooms, a kitchen and staff offices. Attached to the community center will be a laundry 
room and bike storage.  
 
Pedestrian circulation allows resident and visitor access throughout the site. Site amenities include a 
central 800 sq. ft. playground for ages 2-12, a shaded dining area, a teen “hang-out space”, and a 
community garden. Many shade trees and flowering accent trees are proposed for the site as well as 
ten 24”-box, or larger, native Valley Oaks to meet mitigation requirements. Street trees are planned for 
both West College Avenue and Kowell Lane. The north and west property lines will be enclosed by solid 
6’-0” fencing.  Plantings in the community will be low water and hardy  while providing visual relief and 
interest. 



E06878

RECEIVED










STILL STRONG
e L)





 
 
 
 
 

From: Natalie Mattei <Natalie.Mattei@albertsons.com> 
Sent: Friday, August 6, 2021 12:58 PM
To: Murray, Susie <SMurray@srcity.org>
Cc: Natalie Mattei <Natalie.Mattei@albertsons.com>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] 1385 West College, Santa Rosa
 
Ms. Murray,
 
I learned about the proposed project above via the City’s weekly notification summary.
 
Safeway has previously requested that to be on an Interested Persons notification list for this
project. Can you please confirm if we are still on it, and if not, please add me?
 
Can you please provide me with information on the proposal, brief history, status and next steps?
My understanding is that the same project came forward a couple of years ago.
 
Lastly, can you please provide me with the Applicant’s contact information?
 
Thank you.
 
Natalie Mattei
Director of Real Estate
Albertsons Companies, Inc.
11555 Dublin Canyon Road
Pleasanton, CA 94588
925-226-5754 Office | 925-413-4455 Cell
natalie.mattei@albertsons.com
 

www.albertsonscompaniesrealestate.com

 

Warning: All e-mail sent to this address will be received by the corporate e-mail system, and is
subject to archival and review by someone other than the recipient. This e-mail may contain
proprietary information and is intended only for the use of the intended recipient(s). If the reader of
this message is not the intended recipient(s), you are notified that you have received this message in
error and that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message is strictly
prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately.

mailto:Natalie.Mattei@albertsons.com
mailto:SMurray@srcity.org
mailto:Natalie.Mattei@albertsons.com
mailto:natalie.mattei@albertsons.com
http://www.albertsonscompaniesrealestate.com/


From: Murray, Susie
To: Natalie Mattei
Cc: Gurney, Cleve
Subject: FW: 1385 W. College Avenue, Aviara Apartments
Date: Monday, December 13, 2021 4:52:00 PM
Attachments: image003.jpg

1385 College - civil site plan.pdf
image004.png
image005.png
image006.jpg
image001.jpg

Natalie,
 
The existing 20’-wide travel lane will be extended by 16 feet, which will include parallel parking.   I’ve copied Cleve on this email in case you need further
clarification. 
 
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
 
 
 
 

From: Gurney, Cleve <cgurney@srcity.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 27, 2021 9:05 AM
To: Murray, Susie <SMurray@srcity.org>
Cc: Osburn, Gabe <GOsburn@srcity.org>
Subject: RE: 1385 W. College Avenue, Aviara Apartments
 
Hi Susie,
 
On most of the medium to large size projects Gabe or Carol will typically be training me/supervising the project, but I will be fully plugged in.
 
Based on the civil site plan attached the proposed improvements to Kowell Lane are on the west half. Once we get more north then that is where the improvements
extend past the street centerline to provide a full 20’ travel lane.
 
The highlighted curb return below looks to be where Safeway routes their deliveries. I tried to match up the civil site plan with where the existing fire hydrants are
located on street view and the portion of improvements extending past the centerline are further north of the delivery entrance. I hope this helps and clarifies this
for her.
 

mailto:SMurray@srcity.org
mailto:Natalie.Mattei@albertsons.com
mailto:cgurney@srcity.org
http://srcity.org/QLess
https://srcity.org/3344/Planning-Application-Portal
https://ws.srcity.org/PWMaps/PermitSearch.aspx
mailto:planning@srcity.org
mailto:permitsubmittal@srcity.org
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Thank you,
 
Cleve Gurney | Assistant Engineer
Planning and Economic Development | Engineering Development Services
100 Santa Rosa Avenue | Santa Rosa, CA 95404
Tel. (707) 543-3206 | cgurney@srcity.org

 

From: Murray, Susie <SMurray@srcity.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 27, 2021 8:35 AM
To: Gurney, Cleve <cgurney@srcity.org>
Cc: Osburn, Gabe <GOsburn@srcity.org>
Subject: 1385 W. College Avenue, Aviara Apartments
 
Good morning Cleve,
 
The representative from Safeway is concerned that their truck access for deliveries, taken from Kowell Road to the loading dock on the west side of the Safeway
building next door, will be compromised during and after the improvements on Kowell Road.  I’m not sure how to respond to her, but I think she’s got a valid
concern.  When I look at the plans, it appears the improvements will only be on the west half of the street, but I don’t see the usual civil-prepared site plan in the
submittal.  Am I missing it?
 
This woman is a challenge to deal with; she uses a very threatening approach with “packs of attorneys” and now “the Teamsters.”  I’d like to put her mind at ease
but need your help.  I’m including Gabe because he knows the history and, frankly, I’m not sure which of you is reviewing this project right now.
 
Thanks in advance!!!
 
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
mailto:GOsburn@srcity.org
mailto:smurray@srcity.org
http://srcity.org/QLess
https://srcity.org/3344/Planning-Application-Portal
https://ws.srcity.org/PWMaps/PermitSearch.aspx
mailto:planning@srcity.org
mailto:permitsubmittal@srcity.org


From: Murray, Susie
To: teejay.lowe@westcollegemgmt.com
Subject: Murray, Susie shared the folder "Project Plans & Traffic Study" with you.
Date: Tuesday, October 26, 2021 1:00:20 PM
Attachments: AttachedImage

AttachedImage
AttachedImage
AttachedImage

Murray, Susie shared a folder with you

Teejay,

Please confirm that you've received this link and are able to open the file.

Thanks much.

Susie

Susie Murray | Senior Planner
Planning & Economic Development |100 Santa Rosa Avenue | Santa Rosa, CA 95404

Tel. (707) 543-4348 | Fax (707) 543-3269 | smurray@srcity.org

 

Project Plans & Traffic Study

This link only works for the direct recipients of this message.

Open

Privacy Statement

mailto:SMurray@srcity.org
mailto:teejay.lowe@westcollegemgmt.com
https://cityofsantarosa.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/PlanningTeam/EtQY_wP1CC5NjjFey2IJ9tgBW6-JD0NOWZ4gc_BL4QTMaQ?email=teejay.lowe%40westcollegemgmt.com&e=5%3aHlvXWs&at=9
https://cityofsantarosa.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/PlanningTeam/EtQY_wP1CC5NjjFey2IJ9tgBW6-JD0NOWZ4gc_BL4QTMaQ?email=teejay.lowe%40westcollegemgmt.com&e=5%3aHlvXWs&at=9
https://cityofsantarosa.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/PlanningTeam/EtQY_wP1CC5NjjFey2IJ9tgBW6-JD0NOWZ4gc_BL4QTMaQ?email=teejay.lowe%40westcollegemgmt.com&e=5%3aHlvXWs&at=9
https://cityofsantarosa.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/PlanningTeam/EtQY_wP1CC5NjjFey2IJ9tgBW6-JD0NOWZ4gc_BL4QTMaQ?email=teejay.lowe%40westcollegemgmt.com&e=5%3aHlvXWs&at=9
https://northcentralusr-notifyp.svc.ms/api/v2/tracking/method/Click?mi=nXmZEKTl5EankARmd6Q5Qg&tc=PrivacyStatement&cs=f97d4ae4336b3342c9a937ee3f36e84e&ru=https%3a%2f%2fprivacy.microsoft.com%2fprivacystatement%5c
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From: Murray, Susie
To: Teejay Lowe
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL]
Date: Tuesday, October 26, 2021 1:01:00 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg

Teejay,
 
I just sent a link that should give you access to the Aviara Apartments plans.  Please confirm that
you’re able to open the files.
 
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
 
 
 
 

From: Teejay Lowe <teejay.lowe@westcollegemgmt.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 26, 2021 12:28 PM
To: Murray, Susie <SMurray@srcity.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL]
 
Hi Susie. 
 
 

Teejay K. Lowe
Managing Partner
West College Management LLC
 

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
To: Judy Ervice
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Aviara info
Date: Thursday, December 9, 2021 7:17:00 AM
Attachments: image002.jpg

Judy,
 
Please see my responses below in red.
 
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
 
 
 
 

From: Judy Ervice <judy.ervice@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, December 7, 2021 4:19 PM
To: Murray, Susie <SMurray@srcity.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Aviara info
 
Hi Susie,
Here is my list of other affordable apartment complexes (plus one market rate complex)in Santa
Rosa that are comparable in size to Aviara. I also included two that Jeff Johnson gave me the names
of…his company developed them in SoCal.  Because I used to live in San Diego and have friends
there, several of my friends did some scouting and spoke with residents of these two complexes. 
 
Uniformly, all of these complexes have residents that report serious parking problems. I wonder if
this info can somehow be included with the presentation so I don’t have to use my precious 3
minutes to review them?  I will include parking in the “public comments” section of my presentation,
although I won’t do your comments justice.   As I’ve explained before, an effective way of using the
three minute limit is passing the floor to the next person with a collaborative presentation (much
like passing the Olympic Torch.  If you opt for this plan, we will work with you to call names in the
correct order.

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
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Also, is there any possibility this project can be earlier on the schedule on the 15th? Every time, we
have been last and have to sit through other lengthy presentations before Aviara comes up. I think
this is the only item on the agenda.
 
The neighborhood is feeling very discouraged and hopeless that protesting this will do any good at
all.  We all felt like the Design Review Board hearing was a “love-fest” between the Board and the
Developer and our concerns were not even acknowledged. We fear more of the same and it’s
doubtful we can raise the money for an appeal.  Folks think it would just be throwing money down
the drain.  Its sad that residents feel so powerless when we are negatively impacted by all this.  I
understand your concern and am happy to discuss it with you.
 
Also, wondering if the probable rat situation is being addressed? When the last small housing
development went in off Ridley, behind residents on Manhattan Way, they were inundated with
rats.  One person had to spend several thousand dollars for remediation.  One neighbor heard about
a program with some kind of dog (terrier) where they come in to areas under construction to keep
the rat population down.  Sadly, critters that live on the property will seek new locations.  It
happened when your home was built, and it happens with all new development.  Some are
protected under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); most are not.  Birds and bats enjoy
some protection during nesting months.  Those conditions have been added to the resolution.
 
Thanks, Susie.
Judy Ervice
 
 
Judy 
 
Be the Light, Be the Change. 
 
 
 

 



From: Murray, Susie
To: Teejay Lowe
Cc: Gurney, Cleve
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Project on Kowell and West College
Date: Monday, November 1, 2021 12:33:00 PM

Hi Teejay,

By way of this email, I'm looping Cleve from our Engineering Development Services team in on the conversation.  I
had a brief conversation with him this morning and explained that you owned the Safeway site, but I think I
neglected to tell him you also have an interest three residential properties on the private end of Kowell Road.

Cleve,

Please keep me in the know if any plans change. 

Thanks.

Susie

Susie Murray | Senior Planner
Planning & Economic Development |100 Santa Rosa Avenue | Santa Rosa, CA 95404
Tel. (707) 543-4348 | Fax (707) 543-3269 | smurray@srcity.org

Please consider the environment before printing.
I am working remotely during this time. The City of Santa Rosa has restricted City facilities to the public and is
offering in-person City Hall support by appointment only. The Planning and Economic Development Department
has recently launched its Planning Application Portal which contains process checklists for the majority of planning
entitlements. You can also check on the status of your permit application here. For general planning inquiries, please
contact planning@srcity.org. To submit permit application materials, please submit all required documents to
permitsubmittal@srcity.org.

-----Original Message-----
From: Teejay Lowe <teejay.lowe@westcollegemgmt.com>
Sent: Monday, November 1, 2021 10:35 AM
To: Murray, Susie <SMurray@srcity.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Project on Kowell and West College

Good Morning Ms. Murray,
I am writing you on behalf of GG&P LLC.  They are the owners of the 3 homes on The East side of Kowell lane.  
We have concern about the incomplete improvements being proposed on Kowell lane.   Can you please direct me to
to right person to talk about the civil improvement being proposed on Kowell?   Thank you. 

Teejay Lowe

Teejay K. Lowe
Managing Partner
West College Management LLC

Sent from my iPhone

mailto:SMurray@srcity.org
mailto:teejay.lowe@westcollegemgmt.com
mailto:cgurney@srcity.org


From: Murray, Susie
To: Natalie Mattei
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Santa Rosa Design Review Board Agenda Item 9.3 Aviara
Date: Thursday, August 19, 2021 1:20:00 PM
Attachments: image002.jpg

image003.png

Natalie,
 
Thanks for getting this over to me so quickly.  It’ll be forwarded off to the Design Review Board
shortly.
 
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
Sent: Thursday, August 19, 2021 1:15 PM
To: Murray, Susie <SMurray@srcity.org>; Montoya, Michelle <MMontoya@srcity.org>
Cc: teejay.lowe@westcollegemgmt.com; Jeff E. Johnson <jeff@mckellarmcgowan.com>; Natalie
Mattei <Natalie.Mattei@albertsons.com>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Santa Rosa Design Review Board Agenda Item 9.3 Aviara
Importance: High
 
Please distribute the attached letter from Safeway to the Design Review Board for its August 19,
2021 concept review of the proposed Aviara project.
 
Thank you for your assistance.
 
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
Date: Tuesday, October 26, 2021 1:11:00 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg

FYI - I sent the same link the Natalie.
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, October 26, 2021 1:10 PM
To: Murray, Susie <SMurray@srcity.org>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL]
 
Thanks for the links Susie!   I got them and I was able to download.   
 
Teejay 
 

Teejay K. Lowe
Managing Partner
West College Management LLC
 
 

On Oct 26, 2021, at 1:01 PM, Murray, Susie <SMurray@srcity.org> wrote:
 
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
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I just sent a link that should give you access to the Aviara Apartments plans.  Please
confirm that you’re able to open the files.
 
Thanks much.
 
Susie
 
Susie Murray | Senior Planner
Planning & Economic Development |100 Santa Rosa Avenue | Santa Rosa, CA 95404
Tel. (707) 543-4348 | Fax (707) 543-3269 | smurray@srcity.org
 
<image001.jpg>

P Please consider the environment before printing.

I am working remotely during this time. The City of Santa Rosa has restricted City facilities to the public and
is offering in-person City Hall support by appointment only. The Planning and Economic Development
Department has recently launched its Planning Application Portal which contains process checklists for the
majority of planning entitlements. You can also check on the status of your permit application here. For
general planning inquiries, please contact planning@srcity.org. To submit permit application materials, please
submit all required documents to permitsubmittal@srcity.org.
 
 
 
 

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
Subject: RE: EXTERNAL EMAIL: FW: [EXTERNAL] 1385 West College, Santa Rosa
Date: Wednesday, August 11, 2021 10:08:00 AM
Attachments: image005.png

image006.jpg
image001.jpg

Natalie,
 
I’ve added you to the mailing list.  Please feel free to check in periodically as sometimes the lists are
recreated.  A Notice of Application will go out when the official project applications are received,
which I anticipate mailing in the next few months.  If you haven’t received it, check back.
 
Dave,
 
Would you please send Natalie a copy of the plans being presented to the Design Review Board? 
Old-school maybe, but I’m always more comfortable if those are provided by the applicant team.
 
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
Sent: Friday, August 6, 2021 3:08 PM
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
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Susie,
 
Thank you for the quick response. Please include me on the “mailing list” via email.
 
Could you please forward the site plan and drawings? I note there’s an elevation on the community
notice.
 
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
Sent: Friday, August 6, 2021 2:41 PM
To: Natalie Mattei <Natalie.Mattei@albertsons.com>
Cc: DBrown@adobeinc.com
Subject: EXTERNAL EMAIL: FW: [EXTERNAL] 1385 West College, Santa Rosa
 
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
https://clicktime.symantec.com/3HAm4fAxuNbh1FqyMBAAL4J7Vc?u=http%3A%2F%2Fsrcity.org%2FQLess
https://clicktime.symantec.com/3HAm4fAxuNbh1FqyMBAAL4J7Vc?u=http%3A%2F%2Fsrcity.org%2FQLess
https://clicktime.symantec.com/3NDbViTh3Zygu9eK3JH5YA97Vc?u=https%3A%2F%2Fsrcity.org%2F3344%2FPlanning-Application-Portal
https://clicktime.symantec.com/3PNqAKngTu6x1LQaz79JCLf7Vc?u=https%3A%2F%2Fws.srcity.org%2FPWMaps%2FPermitSearch.aspx
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
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December 10, 2021 
Via e-mail to:  

 
Mr. Jeff E. Johnson 
McKellar McGowan Holdings Inc. 
 
 
Re: 1385 West College Avenue – Sanitary Sewer Study  
 Engineering Development Services Condition of Approval No. 75  
 
 
Dear Mr. Johnson,  
 
Susie Murray asked to me to assist her with a review of your December 3, 2021, letter with questions 
regarding the necessity to upsize the existing sections of the 6-inch sewer main in Kowell Road to a 
minimum of 8-inches.    
 
After reviewing the Preliminary Sanitary Sewer Study for the Aviara Apartments project, dated 
August 27, 2021, prepared by Adobe Associates, I have a few questions and comments regarding the 
information presented in the report.  Knowing the importance of this project, I contacted James 
Jensen directly and we are working together to resolve my questions.  Based on our discussion, James 
will resubmit a revised study to me early next week.  Because it’s unlikely that this will be resolved 
prior to the public hearing scheduled next week, we’ve added revised language in the condition that 
allows us flexibility to make changes if warranted. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 707-543-3854 or Lurbanek@srcity.org. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Lori Urbanek, PE 
Deputy Director of Water Engineering Resources  
 
cc:  Susie Murry, Senior Planner 
 Cleve Gurney, Assistant Engineer 
 Gabe Osburn, Deputy Director Development Services  
 Caryn Lozada, Development Review Coordinator 

James Jensen, Adobe Associates   
  




